SHBA&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

Ffreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Private Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ffreedom Intermediary Infrastructure
Private Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and

the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the material accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (“IND AS™), of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025, its profit, total comprehensive income , its
cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion.
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Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises Director’s report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of the
Act, read with relevant rules issued there under.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do SO.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantec that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
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the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(i1) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (IT) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation
of the financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books;

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose
of preparation of these financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indjan
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

¢. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March, 2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

Page 4 of 14




With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “Annexure B”; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us:

i

ii.

iii.

There were no pending litigations which would impact the financial position
of the Company.

The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amount required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company in accordance to the provision of the Act,
and rules made there under.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in note 39, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds ) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(entities), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™),with  the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in note 39, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(entities), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise ,
that the Company shall , whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
funding party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us believe that representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) above may
contain any material misstatement.
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v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year hence the
provisions of Section 123 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with.

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

The Company has not paid managerial remuneration hence, the provisions of section 197
with respect to managerial remuneration are not applicable to the Company.

ForSHBA & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101046W / W100063

Partner

Membership No.: 150818

Place: Mumbai

Date : 8 April, 2025

UDIN: 25150818BMLNER2654
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Re: Ffreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

i.  Inrespect of Company’s Property Plant and Equipment:
(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative (details and situation of property, plant, equipment fixed assets).

(B)In respect of Intangible assets:
The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which
all the assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year at regular
intervals which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanation given to us and
records examined by us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) The Company does not own any immovable properties hence issue with respect to title
deeds is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of it’s Property Plant Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the year.

(e) According to information and explanation provided to us by the management and the
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988(45 of 1 988) and rules made thereunder.

ii. In respect of its Inventories:

a. The Company does not hold inventory at any time during the year, hence the issue with respect
to physical verification and discrepancies does not arises.

b. During any point of time of the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of 5 crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis
of security of current assets hence verification of relevant statements is not applicable.

iii. According to the information given to us, the Company has not provided any guarantee or

security but made investment in Debentures, granted loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, the details of which are as under-
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(a) During the year the Company has provided loans and purchased Investments the details of
which are as follows-

(A) the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet
date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries,
Joint ventures and associates are as under.

Aggregate amount of loan given during the year is Rs. Nil.
The balance outstanding at the balance sheet date is Rs. Nil.

(B) the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet
date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to parties other
than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are as under;

Aggregate amount of loan given during the year is Rs.4466 lakhs
The balance outstanding at the balance sheet date is Rs. Nil.

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms
and conditions of the loans granted and investments made by the company during the year
are not prejudicial to the interest of the company.

(c) There are no loans and advances in the nature of loans for which the schedule of repayment
of principal and payment of interest has not been stipulated and the repayments or receipts

are irregular;
(d) There was no amount overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) During the year no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due
during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue
of existing loans given to the same parties,

(f) The Company has granted loans repayable on demand and the same has been repaid during
the year , the details of which are as under.

Sr. No. All Parties Promoters | Related Parties
Aggregate amount of loans/

advances in nature of loans

i)Repayable on demand (A) Rs. 4466 lakhs | Nil Rs. 4466 lakhs
ii)Agreement does not specify | Nil Nil Nil

any terms or period of

repayment (B)

Total (A+B) Rs. 4466 lakhs | Nil Rs. 4466 lakhs
Percentage of loans/ advances in | 100% 0% 100%

nature of loans to the total loans
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iv.

vi.

Vii.

The Company has given loans covered under provisions of section 186 of the Act and relevant
provisions have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
during the year, within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act or directives issued by
Reserve Bank of India or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there
under and therefore, clause (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. No order has
been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of
India or any court or any other tribunal against the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and examined by us, the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Act in respect of the Company.

According to the information and based on the examination of the explanations given to us,

a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident
fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-tax, Profession Tax, Goods and Service Tax,
duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of such statutory dues were
in arrears as at 31% March, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they

became payable.

b) There are no dues referred to in sub-clause (a), which have not been deposited on account

of any dispute.

viii. According to the information and explanations given by the management and records

ix.

examined by us there are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account and
which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to banks or financial institutions

during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
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xi.

xii.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not taken any term loans during the year and hence clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have

been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or

joint venture as defined under the Act.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

(a) According to the information and explanations given by the management and records
examined by us, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, the clause 3(x)(a)of the
aforesaid Order is not applicable to the Company. '

(b) The Company has not made preferential allotment or private p]acément of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore
clause 3(x)(b) of the aforesaid order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given by the management and records
examined by us, we have neither noticed or reported during the year any instances of fraud by
the Company or any fraud on the Company .

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT -4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management and records
examined by us no whistle blower complaints have been received during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore clause 3(xii)(a)(b)(c) of the aforesaid Order
is not applicable to the Company.
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xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of
related party transactions the Company has complied with Section 177 and 188 of the Act. The
details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. (a) According to the information and explanations given by the management and records
examined by us, the internal audit is not applicable to the Company however there is a proper
internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of business.

xv. According to the information and explanations given by the management and records
examined by us, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him, under Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, clause (xv) of the
Order is not applicable.

xvi. (a)The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934.

(b)The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
as per the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934; therefore the said sub-clause is not applicable.

(¢)The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India; therefore the sub-clause(c) and (d) is not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year, hence clause 3 (xvii) of the Order is not applicable.

xviii. There is no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, hence clause 3 (xviii) of the
Order is not applicable.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
the director’s report forming part of the annual report of the company; and as per our
knowledge of the Board of Directors’ and management plans, we are of the opinion that no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report and that the Company is capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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xX. According to the information and explanations given by the management and records
examined by us, the Company is not required to spend amount under CSR Scheme under
section 135 of the Companies Act. Hence sub-clause (a)and (b) is not applicable.

xxi. As the Company is not required to consolidate the accounts of any other company, this clause
is not applicable.

ForSHBA & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101046 W/W 100063

Reema Sheth
Partner
Membership No.: 150818
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date for the year ended as on 31 March,2025)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Ffreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March
31,2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
g p

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or €rror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, internal financial controls over financial reporting that
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal control over
financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal-

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForSHBA&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101046 W/W 100063

% |
ema Sheth

Partner
Membership No. 150818
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FFREEDOM INTERMEDIARY INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U74999MH2013PTC245870
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
3 Asat Asat
Fistricniny NoteNo. | njaRCH 31, 2025 MARCH 31, 2024
1 ASSETS
I Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 31.79 41.98
(b) Right-of-use Asset 3 38.99 7.65
{c) Other Intangible assets 4 366.37 489.16
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investment 8(i) 1,400.00 -
(ii) Other Financial Assets (i) 52.92 3.37
(¢) Deferred tax assets (net) 5 77.49 127.52
Total Non-current assets 1,967.56 669.68
2 Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 2,60 4,29
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 211.46 376.61
(iv) Investments 8(ii) - 942,61
(v) Other Financial Assets 9(ii) 33.01 -
{b) Other current assets 10 14,33 9.56
(c) Current Tax Assets 23 18.82 20.85
Total Current Assets 280.22 1,353.92
Total Assets 2,247.78 2,023.60
i1 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11 82.93 82,93
(b) Other Equity 12 1,719.46 1,568.32
Total Equity 1,802.39 1,651.25
2 LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13(i) 8.10 12.73
(ii) Lease Liability 14(i) 22.87 -
(b) Provisions 15(1) 18.22 22.09
Total Non-Current Liabilities 49,19 34.82
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13(ii) 4.62 427
(ii) Lease Liability 14(ii) 16.44 8.26
(iti) Other financial liabilities 16 24.09 18.85
(b) Other current liabilities 17 328.42 300.83
(c) Provisions 15(ii) 22,63 5.32
Total Current Liabilities 396.20 337.53
Total Equity And Liabilities 2,247.78 2,023.60
Corporate Information and summary of Material Accounting Policies & Notes
Forming Part of the Financial Statement 1-40
As per our attached report of even date For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

For SHBA & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
RN 101046W/W100063

Reema Sheth

Partner Rajesh Kiimar Bhutara Abhishek Rathi

Membership No: 150818 Director Director

Mumbai DIN:01315143 DIN :09629982
Mumbai Mumbai

Date: April 08, 2025




FFREEDOM INTERMEDIARY INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U74999MH2013PTC245870

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the Year ended For the Year ended 31st

icul ,
Earticulars Note No. | 315t March, 2025 March, 2024
I Revenue From Operations 18 625.15 562.54
1T Other Income 19 140.92 112.36
Il Total Income (I+I1) 766.07 674.90
IV Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 20 320.80 352.56
Finance costs 21 3.32 2.78
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3&4 149.88 14831
Other expenses 22 75.60 72.45
Total expenses (IV) 549,60 576.10
V' Profit/(Loss) before tax (11I-IV) 216.47 98.80
VI Tax expense: 23
Current Tax 0.08 -
Deferred tax 53.83 25.51
0.14 0.30

Short / Excess Tax Provision

Total Tax Expenses 54.05 25.81

VII Profit for the Year (V - VI) 162.42 72.99

VIII Other Comprehensive Income
(A) (i) Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to
profit or loss

(B) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss
- Remeasurements of the defined employee benefit plans (15.07) (1.22)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss 3.79 0.30

Total Other comprehensive Income/(Loss) (11.28) (0.92)
IX Total Comprehensive Income For The Year (VII + VIII) 151.14 72.07
X Eaming Per Equity Share of Rs.10 each 27

Basic 19.59 8.80

Diluted 19.59 8.80

Corporate Information and summary of Material Accounting Policies

& Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statement

As per our attached report of even date For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

For SHBA & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
N 101046W/W100063

& (o

eema Sheth

Partner Rajesh Kumar Bhutara hishek Rathi

Membership No: 150818 Director Director

Mumbai DIN:01315143 DIN :09629982
Mumbai Mumbai

Date: April 08, 2025




Ffreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.
CIN : UT4999MH2013PTC245870
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)
5 For the Year ended 31st | For the Year ended 31st
Particulars
artiens March, 2025 March, 2024
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax 21647 98.80
Add / (Less) :
Depreciation & amortisation 149.88 14831
Net Fair Value (Gain)/Loss on Financial instruments 0.93 (0.93)
Interest Income (101.61) (109.51)
Interest Expenses 332 2.78
Provision for Gratuity 4.33 273
Provision for Leave Encashment (2.23) 0.02
Operating profit before working capital changes 271.09 142.20
Adjustment for :
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Financial Assets (507.90) 59.39
(Increase)/decrease in Other current assets (2.74) 246
(Increase)/decrease in Trade receivables 1.69 5.25
Increase (decrease) in Other Financial liabilities 4.55 591
Increase/(decrease) in Other current liabilities 23.86 43.78
(480.54) 116.79
Cash (used in)/ generated from operations (209.45) 258.99
Add/( Less) :
Income Tax (Paid)/ Refund (0.22) {4.39)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities (209.67) 254.60
B. Cash flow from investing activities :
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (0.57) (1.92)
Security Deposit Given - (0.01)
Loan given - (3,650.00)
Loan received back - 3,650.00
Interest Income 68.60 109.51
Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities 68.03 107.58
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Interest Paid (1.17) (1.49)
Repayment of Loan (4.28) (3.95)
Repayment of Lease Liabilities (18.06) (16.80)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities (23.51) (22.24)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (165.15) 339.94
Cash and cash equivalents - opening balance 376.61 36.67
Cash and cash equivalents - closing balance 21146 376.61
Details of cash and cash equivalent at the at the end of Year
- Cash in hand 0.21 0.27
- Balance in current accounts 211.25 376.34
Total 211.46 376.61
Cash flow is prepared under indirect method as specified under IND AS 7- Statements of Cash flow.
As per our attached report of even date For and on Behalf of Board of Directors
For SHBA & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101046 W/W100063 \
S ~ J‘y
ema Sheth “
Partner Rajesh Kumar Bhutara Abhishek Rathi
Membership No: 150818 Director Director
Mumbai DIN:(1315143 DIN :09629982
Date: April 08,2025 Mumbai Mumbai




Fireedom Intermediary Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.

CIN : U74999MH2013PTC245870
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

A.

Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Asat April 1,2023

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Changes in equity share capital during the year

As at March 31, 2024

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Changes in equity share capital during the period

As at March 31, 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)

No. of Shares Amount
8,29,252 8293
8,29,552 82j93
8,2 9,2-52 82:93
8.29,.';52 82?93
8,29.2752 82j93

Other Equity

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Securities Premium Retained Earnings Other Comprehonglve Total
Income

Balance as at April 1, 2023 2,442.08 (953.37) 7.54 1,496.26
Profit{Loss) for the Year - 72.99 - 72.99
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) - - (0.92) (0.92)]
Total Comprehensive Income - 72.99 (0.92) 72.07
Addition during the year - . - E
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2,442.08 (880.38) 6.62 1,568.33
Balance as at April 1, 2024 2,442.08 (880.38) 6.62 1,568.33
Profit/(Loss) for the Year - 162.42 - 162.42
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) - - (11.28) (11.28)
Total Comprehensive Income - 162.42 (11.28) 151.14
Addition during the year - - & -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 2,442.08 (717.96) {4.66) 1,719.47

As per our attached report of even date

For SHBA & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101046 W/W 100063

eema Sheth
Partner
Membership No: 150818
Mumbai
Date: April 08, 2025

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

L E (o

Rajesh Kumar Bhutara Abhishek Rathi
Director Director
DIN:01315143 DIN :09629982
Mumbai Mumbai




Fireedom Intermediary Infrastructure Pvt, Ltd.

CIN : U74999M H2013PTC245870
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Ffreedom intermediary infrastructure is a private limited company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The company is engaged in the business of collecting, processing
information in various manner using manual, electronic, mobile or any other mediums or devices from clients, intermediaries, corporate and people in general, to create analytics, statistics, reports, collate
data and information and to create, design, invent, prepare, own, develop market, distribute, franchise out, rent, oulsource, operate as service of software systems, software solution, hardware and to deal
with computers data processing machines or any other equipment and materials of every kind and description useful in connection with collections, evaluations & storage of data/information, data input
tool, and output reports and provide guidelines and actionable, engage with clients, intermediaries and to deliver as per their requirements in terms of building infrastructure on the basis of information
technology (IT) or non IT and make it available worldwide.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

o

Statement of Compliance
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016, the relevant prowvisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

(i

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company al their meeting held on April 08, 2025

(b) Basis Of Measurement
These Financial Stalements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the|

accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the considerati given in exch for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement dale, regardless of whether that price is|
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial Statements are consistent with those followed in the previous vear

by the Company.

(c) Critical Accounting Judgements and key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The preparation of the Company’s Financial St s requires 1 1t to make judgement, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, asscts and liabilities|
and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in

next financial years,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

(i) Depreciation / Amortisation and useful lives of property, plant and equipment: The Company depreciate & its tangible assets over the useful life of an Asset as prescribed in Schedule 11 of]
Companies Act, 2013. The Company remeasures remaining useful life of an asset at the end of each reporting date.

(ii) Fair value measurement: Fair Value is a price of orderly transaction between markel participants at the measurement date under currenl market conditions. The Company determines Fair Value of]
Quoted Investment from available market price. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using appropriate valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
rtequired in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the

significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level I inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities that the entity can access al the measurement date;
- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

(iif) Provisions: Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event; and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. Management estimates it by using its best judgement of future cash outflow.

(iv) Taxes: The Company periodically assesses its liabilities and contingencies related to income taxes for all years open to scrutiny based on latest information available, For matters where it is probable|
that an adjustment will be made, the Company Tecords its best estimates of the tax liability in the current tax provision. The Management believes that they have adequately provided for the probable|

outcome of these matters.
Deferred lax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is

required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits.

(v) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations
The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is delermined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation and attrition rate. The

discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the Teporting period on govemnment securities.

(d)} Curreat and Non-Current Classification
Azsets & liabilities which are going to materialise in one operating cycle i.e. is considered as current and assets & liabilities other than that is considered as non current.

(€) Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets and Depreciation & Amaortisation

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Direct costs in relation to the fixed assets are capitalized until such assets are ready for use,

(i) Tangible Assets: Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the Management. Depreciation for assets purchased during a
period is proportionately charged. The useful ife of tangible assets is as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.

(if) Intangible Assets: Intangible assets consists of software. The software had been amortized over a period of 7 Years in FY 2019-20. The estimation of amortisation period for software had been|
reviewed by Management during FY 2020-21 and the amortisation period has been revised to 10 years accordingly.
Intangible assets also contains trade mark which has been amortized over a period of 10 Years on SLM basis.




Flreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Pvi. Lid.
CIN : U74999MH2013PTC245870
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(D Financials Instruments

Financial assets and fi ial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party 10 the contractual provisions of the instruments.
p

Financial assets and financial Jiabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to borrowings) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable 10 the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in|

Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in (heir entiret; when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

(i) Classification & Measurement of Financial Assets

Financial assets shall be measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold asset to collect contractual cash flows: and

+ the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the prnincipal amount outstanding

Debt Instruments at FVTOCT: Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at Fair Value (except for those designated at FVTPL on initial recognition)

+ the objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flow and selling financial assets; and

» the asset’s contractual cash flow represent SPPI

Debt Instruments at FVTPL: Any debt instrument which is either initially designated at FVTPL or which does not meet the eriteria for Amortised cost or FVTOCI is measured at FVTPL.

Effective Interest Method: Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset. When calculating the cffective interest rate, the group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expecled credit losses.

the subsequent changes in fair value in other|

Equity Instruments at FVTOCI: On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election {on an instrument by instrument basis) to present
or loss is not reclassified to the Statement of]

comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the instrument is held for trading. The cumulative gain
Profit and Loss on disposal of the investment.

Financial Assets at FVTPL: Investments in equity instruments are classified at FVTPL, unless they were irrevocably elected on initial recognition as FVTOCI. Financial Assets at FVTPL are measured
at Fair Value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the company, and the

amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit Josses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost, FVOCI debt instruments, and other financial assets. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 32 details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credil risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition

of the receivables.

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when :

* The Company has transferred the nghts to recerve cash flows from the financial asset or

« retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual cbligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised,

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not
retained control of the financial asset. Where the group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset,

(iv) Financial Liabilities;
Financial liabilities that are not held for trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost, The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at
amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.

(v) Derecognition of financial liabilities
Company derecognises financial Jiabilities when, and only when, the company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. A substantial modification in the terms of an existing financial liability
is accounted as a discharge of original financial liability and recognition of new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised as profit or loss.

(vi) Offsetting financial assets and Labilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right and ability to offset the amounts and

intends cither to seitle on a net basis or to realize the assel and settle the liability simultaneous];




Flreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Pvt. Lid.
CIN : U74999M H2013PTC245870
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

{g) Derivatives financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured lo their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(h) Impairment of Assets

Property, plant or equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount (i.e, higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are Jargely|
independent to those from other assets.

The Carrying Amount of Assets is reviewed al each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An assel is treated as impaired when the carrying cost o
assels exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss, if any, is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. Reversal of impairment losses recognized

in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment losses recognized for the assets no longer exists or have decreased

Cash and cash equivalents

i

(i) Cash and cash equivalents in (he balance sheet comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposit with original maturity less than 12 months, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in

value.
(i) For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short-term deposit with initial maturity of less than 3 months, net of outstanding bank

overdraft as they are considered as an integral part of Company'’s cash management.

(j) Borrowing Cost and Finance Charges
Borrowing cost attributable to acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of the cost of such assets up to the date when such assets are ready for its intended use. Other
borrowing cost are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds and is measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective borrowings.

(k) Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution plan — Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme The Company is statutorily required to contribute a specified portion of the basic salary of
an enployee to a provident fund 2s a part of retirement benefits to its employees. The contributions during the period are charged to statement of profit and loss. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the Provident Fund scheme as an expenditure when an employee renders related service.
Defined Benefit Plan — Gratuity, which is in the nature of Defined Benefit Schemes, are payable only to employees and accounted for on accrual basis The Cost of providing benefits 15 determined using
the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and are nol reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company has not funded its gratuity Liability
Short Term Employee Benefits - The undiscounted amounl of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognized during the year when
the employees render the service. These benefits include incentive and Annual Leave which are expected to oceur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the

related service.

Revenue Recognition

(1
(a) Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company, the revenue could be measured reliably and there is no uncertainty as to ultimate collection.

Software Licence and Subscription fee is recognised on accrual basis,

(b) Interest income is recognized on time basis.

(c) Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

(d) The Company derives revenues primarily from Subscription Fees from IT Enable Service.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects
to receive in exchange for those products or services.

The Company recognises provision for sales return, based on the historical results, measured on net basis of the margin of the sale. Therefore, a refund liability, included in other current Jiabilities, are
recognized for the products expected to be returned.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one vear. As a
consequence, it does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

1 The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance

2 The Company’s performance creates or ¢nhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

3 The Company's performance does not creale an asset with an alternative use to the Company and an entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from services are recognised over a time as and when the performance obligation is satisfied.




Flreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Pvi, Lid.
CIN ;: U74999MH2013PTC245870
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(m) Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an
identified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset threugh the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and Jow value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over

the term of the lease,

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease lerm. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that

they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. The; are subsequently d at cost less lated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilitics are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a lermination option.

(n) Taxes on Income
Current Tax: Provision for Income Tax is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable income for the year, The tax effect is caleulated on the accumulated timing differences at
the end of the accounting period based on prevailing enacted or substantively enacted regulations. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all timing differences. Deferred tax assels are recognized for
deductible timing differences only to the extent there is probability that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. At each reporting date the

Company reassesses the unrecognized deferred tax assets and reviews the deferred tax assets recognized.

Current tax and Deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to ilems that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in Other Comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

(0} Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event; and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in

respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Contingent Liabilities are possible but not probable obligations as on the Balance Sheet date, based on the available evidence. Contingent Liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements

Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed.

{p) Earning per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period: year.
Diluted eamings per share are computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the period/year. For the purpose of calculating diluted

earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all

dilutive potential equity shares.

(q) Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows statement is prepared using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature item of income or expenses associated with investing

or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Rounding of amounts

(r]
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and noles have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule I1I, unless otherwise stated.

f=2

QS

(4 )
LR A0




FFREEDOM INTERMEDL FRASTRU E PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN 1 UT4999MH2013PTC245870
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment consists of the lollovi (Rs. In Lakhs)
Froperty, plant and equipm; ing. . (Fs Inbabhn) |
Description =
Motor Vehicle  COMPUIST ¢ Bixtares  Offce oquipments Totl Avets | Right To Use Assets | 10140 Right to Use
cquipment Assets
Asat Apnl 1, 2024 2698 3.5 59.44 266 92.63 4203 42.03
Additions - 0.57 - - 0.57 47.65 47.65
Disposals - - - - - 42.03 4203
As at March 31, 2025 26.98 411 59.44 266 9320 47.65 47.65
Accumulaled depreciation as at April 1, 2024 467 188 4337 0.65 50.64 3438 34.38
Depreciation for the vear 320 0.98 5.57 1.03 10.78 1631 16.31
Disposals - = - - » 4203 42.03
Accwmulaled depreciation as at March 31, 2025 787 286 48.95 168 6142 8.66 8.66
Net carrving amount as &l March 31, 2025 19.11 1.28 10.43 0.98 31.19 38.99 38.99
Description Computer Total Ri
£ % ' ight ta Use
Motor Vehicle equipment Furniture & Fixtures Office equipments Tolul Assets Right To Use Assets ‘Asiids
AsatApnl 1,2023 2098 1.62 59.44 2.66 1321 42.03 42.03
Additions - 192 - = L.92 - -
Disposals - - - . - - -
As al March 31, 2024 26.98 354 5544 2.66 134.66 42.03 42.03
Accumulated depreciation as ot April 1, 2023 146 1.27 3778 0.09 59.80 19.10 19.10
Depreciation for the year Era] 0.61 5.59 0.55 2524 1528 15.28
Dusposals - - ¥ - - - -
Accumulaled depreciation os at March 31, 2024 4.67 1.88 4337 0.65 85.04 34.38 34.38
Net carrving amount as al March 31, 2024 2231 1.66 16.07 2.01 49.63 7.65 7.65
4 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS * (Rs. In Lakhs)
Description Lego trademark - BOTS Software -
OFA Plus Software | OFA Software - DEC 2017 Gtk Total
JsatApnl 1, 2024 398.17 356.51 192 915.05 280 1,674.45
Additions - - - = - -
Disposals - = . = . =
As at March 31, 2025 398.17 356.51 192 915.05 280 1.674.45
Accumulated depreciation as al April 1, 2024 196.€7 34291 144 642.33 1.93 1,185.29
Depreciation for the year 38.43 10.94 0.18 73.01 023 122.79
Disposals - . - 5 N .
laled depreciation as at March 31, 2025 235.10 353,85 163 715.34 215 1,308.08
Nel carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 163.07 2.66 0.29 199.71 0.65 366.37
Deseriplisn OFA Plus Software Loga '(;f‘:'""k' Software - DEC 2017 BOICS Saftware. - Total
Asat April 1,2023 398.17 356.51 1.92 915.05 280 1,674.45
Additions 3 - - z E =
Disposals % ¥ - - = -
#.5 at March 31, 2024 396.17 356.51 1.92 915.05 2.80 1,674.45
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2023 158.14 331.94 1.26 569.18 1.70 1,062.23
Depreciation for the vear 3853 10.97 0.18 73.15 0.23 123.06
Disposals - % - - - -
Accumulaled depreciation as al March 31, 2024 196.67 34291 14 64233 1.93 1,185.29
Net camrving amount as at March 31, 2024 201.50 13.60 048 272.712 0.87 489.16
* Soflware acquired upto 31 March 2020 had been amortized over a period of 7 Years and acquired alter 31t March 2020 is amortised overa period of 10 years .
(Rs. In Lukhs) |
5 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) i L.
Deferred Tax Assels
Business Loss 103.87 172.99
Leave Enceshment 0.59 L15
Grotuity Provisions 9.70 5.7
Expected Credit Loss 11 -
115.27 179.89
Deferred Tax Liabllities
Praperty, Plant and Equipment 3755 5237
Right to Use Assels 023 -
37.78 5237
77.49 127.52
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(i)

(i)

(i)

Aggregate amounl of Un-quoted Investment
Aggrepaie amount of Quoied Securities and market value thereol

(Rs. In Lokdis)
TRADE RECEIVABLES Asal y i Asat "
Unsecured,
(8) Considered Good 260 4.29
(b) Considered doubtful N 189
Total 7.0l 818
Less: Provision for expecied aredit Joss 441 38y
2.60 4.9
Trade Recelvables Ageing Schedule
As at MARCH 31, 2025 Rs. In Lakhs)
Particalars Lubilled Less than 6 months & months - 1 year 1-2 years T3yean More than 3 years Total
111 Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good = 260 - - 260
{ii) Undisputed Trad ivables - which have
increase in Credit risk - - - - -
¢ Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit imporred = 047 194 A : 441
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - . - -
(v) Disputed Trade Reccivables - which ha . significent
increase in Credit risk - - - A
(vi) Disputed Trade Reccivables credit impained . - - .
Total - 307 3.94 - - - 7.0
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 441
Net Trade Recelvable 2.60
As st MARCH 31, 2024 (Rs. In Lukhs) |
Particulars Unbilled Less than 6 monthy 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3yean More than 3 years Total
1) Undispuled Trade receivables — considered good - 429 - N 429
(i) Undisputed Trade wvables - which ha o it
increase in C'redit risk = " B
iz Undisputed Trade Recenables — credit imparred % 38y E 389
(i) Disputed Trade Recer: ables considered pood . E g N
(v} Disputed Trade Recei ables - which have significant
increase in Credit risk 2 . . 5
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables credit impaired - = - = - -
Toral . 429 3.89 = - - 818
Less: Allo- ance for expected eredit Joss 389
Net Trade Recejvable 4.29
Rs. In Lakhs)
MOVEMENT IN THE EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCE ke ool
ARCIE 31, 2025 MARCH 31, 2024
Dalance at beymning of the year gy 0.49
Additions 052 340
Unilised - -
Baslance at end of Pericd Year 441 3.89
(Hs. In Lakhs)
CASIJ AND CASH EQUIVALENTS L pe
Cash o Tand 0.21 0.27
Balanves with Banks.
- in Current Accounts 6.25 37634
- n Deposit Accounts (initial matunity less than 3 monts) 20500 -
211.46 376.61
INVESTMENTS
Asal Asat Asat AS AT MARCH 31,
MARCII 31, 2025 MARCH 31, 2024 MARCH 31. 2025 2024
No. of Units No. of Units Amount Amount
Investments - Non current
Investment In Perpetual Debentures at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
nyes t In Perpetual Debentures
- In Anand Rathi Global Finance Limited 1,400 00 - 1,400 00
{Interest ratc @ 9.50%)
1.400.00
Investments - Current
Un-Quoted Investment - Fully Paid up
Investment In Non-Principal Protected Structured Product al Fair Value through Profit and Loss
- In Anand Rathi Globa] Finance Limited = 1,09 = 94261
- 942,61

94261
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i)
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0

(iiy

iy

5
=

)

(i)

(i)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
MARCII 31. 2025 MARCH 31, 2024
OTIHER FINANCIAL ASSETS Amount Amount
Other Financial Assets - Non current
Fixed Deposits 50.00 -
Security Deposits - Rem 242 287
Secunity Deposit - Telemarketing Primary Rate Inlerface Line 0.50 0.50
52.92 337
Other Financial Assets - Current
Interest Accrued nn =
3301
(Rs, In Lukhs)
" S— Asal Asat
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 3 5 3 "
Stafl Advances 0.90 010
Prepaid Expenses 1343 946
1433 9.56
(Rs. In Lakhs)
OTITY Asal As at
EQUITY SIIARE CAPITAL MAl 1. 2025 5 1 31,2024
The suthorised, issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital comprises of cquity shares hy g & par value of INR 10 each as follows:
Authorised
2,000,000 (PY 2,000,000) Equity Shares uf Rs. 10/-cach 200.00 20000
200.00 200.00
Issued, Subscribed And Paid Up
8,29,252 (PY §,29,252) Liquity Shares of Rs 1 -each Fully Paid Up 8293 8283
82.93 82.93
Reconciliation for No. of shares outstanding during the year
As at Asat
MARCH 31,2025 MARCU 31, 2024
Equity Shares No. of Shares (Rs. In Lakhy) No. of Shores (Rs. In Lokhs)
Shares cutstanding at the boginning of the year 829,252 8203 $.29,252 8293
Shares Issued during the year by capitalising of reserve - - -
Shares Issued during the year for consideration - = = *
8,29,252 82.93 8.29,252 8293

Shares outstanding a1 the end of Year

Terms/Rights attached to the Equity Shares

Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as Fquity Shares having o face value of Ry 10 per share. Lach halder of equity share is entitled 1o one vote per share.

In the cvent of Liquidation of the Company, (he holders of equity shares will be entitled 10 reczive remaining assels of the Company, afler disiribution of all prefercntial amounts. The distribution will b in proportion Lo the number of

equily shares held by the Shareholders

Details of shares held by shareholders holding mare than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

As at MARCH 31, 2025

Name of Sharcholders :
R TSR No, of shares held % of Tlolding No of shares hld % of loldings

Uolding compny
Anand Rathy Wealth Limited® 829,252 100 829,252 100
*Chut of the Total shares | share is held by & nominee on belall of Holding Company:
Shares beld by promoters as on reporting date As at MARCII 31, 2075 As at MARCI 31, 2024

Promoter Nume No.ofshuresheld % of Holdings - ChamRedurigthe s held % of loldings % (Ve during the

yeur_ yesr

Anand Rathi Wealth Limited 8,29,252 100% - 8,29,252 100%

Aggregute nuinber of bonus shares issued, share issued for consideration other than cush and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

Bouus shares issned Tssuc of shares for
by the Company consideration other
March 31, 2025 7
March 31, 2024 =
March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022 =
March 31, 202]

March 31, 2020 &
(Bs. In Lakhs)

: v Asat Asat
OTHER EQUITY M 5 5
Securities Premium
Opening balance 244208 244208
Less: UK for Bonus Issue X -
Add: Addition During the Year - K
Balance as at the year ended 2.442.08 2,442,08
Retained earnings
(pening Balance (880.38) (953.37)
Add: Profiv{loss) During the Year 162.42 2.9
Balance as at the year ended (117.96) (B80.38)
Other Comprehensive lncome
Opening Balance 6.62 754
Remeasurement OF Defined Employee Bencfit Plan (11.28) (0.92)
Balence as a1 the year ended (4.66) 6.62
TOTAL OTHER EQUITY L719.46 1.568.32

Securitics Premium
Balance of Security premium consist on issuc of share over its face value. The balance will be utilised for as per pros isions of the Companics Act,2013.

Retuined carnings
Retained eamings ises of the of ihe amounts thal can be distributed by the cony as dividends 10 its equity sharcholders
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BORROWINGS
Burmowings - Non current
“Term Loan- Vehicle Loan (secured)

Terms of nepayment - Repayable in 60 equal monikly instalments, 1ast instalment Blling due on October 07, 2017
The rate of inicrest on this loan is 7.90% p.a
The Company has not defiulted in repayment of principal & interest due over the reporting period

Borrowings - Curent
Term Loan- Y chicle Loan (secured)

refer above note in 14(i)

LEASE LIABILITIES

Naon Current
Lease Liability

Curreat
Tease Lisbility

PROVISIONS

Employee Benelit Liabilities - Non current
Gratuity Provisions

Current

(0} Employee Benefit Liabilities
Ciratuity Provisions
Leave Encashmen

OTIER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Current
Advance Fom cuslomers
Employee Benefits Payable
Interest sccrued but not due
Expenses Payable

OTIFR CURRENT LIABILITIES

Statutory Ducs.
Deferred Revenue

(Rs, Tn Lukhs)
Asat Asat
31,2025 3
8.10 127
810 12,73
4.62 427
4.61 4.27
(Rs. In Lakhs)
As ar Asat

MARH 31,2025 M, 1 31, 200

2287 -
12.87 -
16.44 826
16.44 8.26
{Rs. In Lakhs)
As ot Asal
5
1§22 209
18.22 2109
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Asat Asat
5
2030 0.76
233 4.56
22.63 532
(Hs. In Lakhs
Asat As at

MARCH 3 5 MA] 1, 202

027 a1l
1540 nn
0.06 009
836 252
24.09 18.85
Rs. In Lakhs)
Asal Asat
MARCII 31, 2025 MARCIH 31, 2024
1723 17.90
31119 28293

32842 30083
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(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the Year ended 3151 For the Year ended 31st

M OP
18 INCOME FROM OPERATIONS March, 2025 March, 2024
Revenue from sale of services
IT Enabled Services 625.15 562.54
625.15 562.54
As at Asat
Contract balances MARCH 31, 2025 MARCH 31,2024
—_—— e e ]
Trade receivables 2.60 4.29
Contract Liabilities 311.19 282.93

Contract liabilities are on account of the upfront revenue received from customer (advance from
customer) for which performance obligation has not yet been completed.

The performance obligation is satisfied when the services are rendered to the customers based on
the contractual terms. Payment terms with customers may vary depending upon the contractual

terms of each contract.
(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the Year ended 31st For the Year ended 31st

19 OTHER INCOME ek Munch 3034
Interest Income 102.62 110.13

Gain / (Loss) on Sale of Investments 38.30 0.79

Fair value Gain / (Loss) on investment - 0.93
Miscellaneous and Other Income - 0.51
140.92 112.36

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the Year ended 31st For the Year ended 31st
EN
20 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE March, 2025 March, 2024

Salary Incentive & Allowances 286,70 318.07

Gratuity Expenses 4.33 4.00
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 18.17 19.31
Staff Welfare expenses 11.60 11.18
320.80 352.56
(Rs. In Lakhs)
For the Year ended 31st For the Year ended 315t

March, 2025 March, 2024

Gratuity :-

The following table sets out the funded status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognized in the Company’s financial statements as at March
31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
Defined Benefit Plans- As per actuarial valuation
Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of gratuity
(funded by the Company):
Present value of the funded defined benefit obligation at the end of

the period. year 38.52 22.86
Less: Fair value of plan assets - -
Net Liability/( Asset) 38.52 22.86

Amounts recognized in Salary, Wages and Employec Benefits in
the Profit and Loss Account in respect of gratuity (funded by the

Company):

Current Service cost 2.1 2.57

Interest on Defined Benefit Obligations 1.56 1.42

Expected return on plan assets = -

Past Service Cost — Vested Benefit recognised during the

period/year - -
Net Gratuity Cost 4.33 4.00
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Amount recognized in OCI in beginning of the period/year “{3.64) (4.86)
Remeasurement due to:

Effect of Change in financial assumptions 5.68 0.58

Effect of Change in demographic assumptions - -

Effect of experience adjustments 9.39 0.64
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 15.07 122

Less : Return on plan assets {excluding interest) - -
Total remeasurements recognized in OCI 15.07 1.22
Amount recognized in OCI, End of period/year 11.43 (3.64)

Actuai Return on Plan Assets ;
Expected Retum on Plan Assets
Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan Assets -

Actual Return on Plan Assets

s ﬂ\“FRA“@A
% MUN‘ Al S
< \
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Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value For the Year ended 31st For the Year ended 31st

of the plan asseis: March, 2025 March, 2024

Change in present value of obligation:

Opening Defined Beneflit Obligation 2286 2012
Interest Cost 1.56 1.42
Current Service Cost 27 2,57

Past Service Cost =
Liability Transferred In’ Acquisitions -

Benefits Paid (3.73)
Total Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligation 15.07
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 38.52
Experience Adjustment
Defined Benefit Obligation 38.52
Plan Assels -
(Surplus)/deficit 38.52
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 15.07

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Plan Assets - Due to Experience
Weighted average duration of Define benefit obligation 14.68

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Within next 12 months 20.30
Between 1 and 5 Years 1.75
Between 6 and 10 Years 9.13
Current/Non Current Bifurcation
Current Liability-Provisions for Employee benefits i 20.30
Non- Current Liability-Provisions for employee benefits 18.22

(2.49)
1.22

22.86

0.76
22.09

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other rele:ant factors|

including supply and demand in the employment markel. The above information is certified by the actuary.
There are no amounts included in the fair value of plan assets for:
1} Company's own financial instrument

ii} Property occupied by or other assets used by the Company

Discount Rate:

Discount Rate for this valuation is based on Yield to Maturity (YTM) available on Government bonds having similar term to decrement-adjusted estimated

term of liabilities.

For valuation as at March 31, 2025 the estimated term of liabilities is 12.59 years, comresponding to which YTM on government bonds is 6.65%, after rounding

1o nearest 0.05%.

Salary Escalation Rate:

Salar, escalation assumption is based on estimates of over all long-term salary growth rates after taking in to consideration expected earnings inflation as well

as performance and seniority related increases.

Withdrawal Rate:
Assumpticns regarding withdrawal rates is based on the estimates of expected long term employee turnover within the organization.
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Mortality Rate
It is based on Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ul as issued by Institute of Actuaries of India for the actuarial valuation.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount rate 6.65% 6.95%
Salary Escalation Rate 7.50% 5.00%

Attrition Rate For Service 4 yrs & below  For Service 4 yrs & below

20% p.a, & service Syrs  20% p.a. & service Syrs
and ahove 2% p.a and above 2% p.a

Retirement Age 60 years 60 years

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of Period/Y ear and may|
not be representative of the actual change, It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumplions constant. When calculating the
sensitivity to the assumption, the same method used to calculate the Tiability recognized in the Balance Sheet has been applied. The methods and types of}
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity anal: sis did not change compared with the previous year,

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 3852 22.86
Discount Rate

Increase by 50 bps 37.12 21.72
Impact of increase by 50 bps in Percentage -3.64% -4.98%
Decrease by 50 bps 40.09 24,09
Impact of decrease by 50 bps in Percentage 4.07% 541%

Salary Growth Rate

Increase by 50 bps 39.58 23.62
Impact of increase by 50 bps in Percentage 2.74% 3.35%
Decrease by 50 bps 3746 2312
Impact of decrease by 50 bps in Percentage -2.77% -3.20%

Plan Information And Characteristics

Eligibility All Employees
Qualifying Salary Monthly Basic Salary
Completed years of continuous service with part thereof in

Qualifying Service excess of six months

Form of Payment Lumpsum

Retirement Beneflit 15/26*Last Drawn salary*Service
Withdrawal Limit Same as Retirement Benefit

Death Benefit Same as Retirement Benefit
Vesting Period 5 years on Retirement & withdrawal
Maximum Ceiling 20 Lacs

Delined Contribution Plans

Amount recognized as an expense under the head Contribution to Provident and other Funds in note 22 Employee Benefit Expenses of Statement of Profit and
Loss towards Group's Contribution to Provident Fund is Rs 14.90 Lakhs (FY 2023-24 Rs 15.55 Lakhs).

(Rs. In Lakhs)
For the Year ended 31st For the Year ended 31st

FINANCE COSTS March, 2025 March, 2024
Interest on lease i 1.29
Interest on Car Loan 117 1.49

3.32 2.78
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22 OTHER EXPENSES

IT Enabled Fees - Processing Charges
Rent

Communication expenses

Electricity expenses

Networking expenses

Legal & professional charges
Membership & subscriptions charges
Business promotion and advertisement expense
Business Development Cost

Printing & stationery charges

Repairs & maintenance - others
Training and Recruitment expenses
Conve;ance expenses

Travelling expenses

Auditors remuneration

- Audit fees

Expected Credit Loss

Office Expenses

Miscellaneous & other expenses

23 INCOME TAX

a) Income Tax Expenses
Current Tax
Current tax on profit for the year
Adjustments for Short / Excess Tax Provision
Total Current tax expenses

Deferred Tax

Decrease / (Increase) in deferred tax assets
(Decrease) / Increase in deferred tax labilities
Total deferred tax expenses / benefit

Total Income Tax Expenses

b)  Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:

Particulars

Applicable Tax Rate

Profit before tax

Tax Expenses as per above rate
Expenses Disallowed

Total Tax Expenses Recognised

Effective Tax Rate

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the Year ended 31st

For the Year ended 31st

March, 2025 March, 2024

7.06 7.10
0.24 0.12
4.25 4.47
7.70 7.09
24.11 20.89
1.84 0.99
- 0.01
0.26 0.20
8.56 7.23
0.41 0.54
3.69 3.60

0.06 -
0.53 0.59
054 1.30
318 335
0.52 3.40
3.52 4.14
9.13 713
75.60 7245

{Rs. In Lakhs)

For the Year ended 31st

For the Year ended 31st

March, 2025 March, 2024
0.08 “
0.14 0.30
0.22 0.30
64.63 34.07
{10.80) (8.86)
53.83 2521
54.05 25.51

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the Year ended 31st
March, 2025

For the Year ended 31st
March, 2024

25.17 2517
216.47 98.80
54.49 24.87
(0.44) 0.64
54.05 25.51
24.97% 25.82%

The Government of India has inserted section 115BAA in the Income Tax Act, 1961 which provides domestic companies an oplion to pay corporate tax at

reduced rate of 22% plus applicable surcharge and cess subject to certain conditions. The C. omp:
income tax and deferred tax have been calculated.

¢)  Current Tax Assets / (Liabilities)

Particulars

Opening balance

Income tax paid

Income Tax refund received

Current Income tax payable for the year
Net Current Income tax assets at the end

any has adopted the option of reduced rate and accordingly]

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the Year ended 31st
March, 2025

For the Year ended 31st
March, 2024

20.85

(2.03)

18.82

16.76
4.09

20.85




FFREEDOM INTERMEDIARY INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U74999MH2013PTC245870
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

24

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD 108:- OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the internal organjsation and management structure, The operating|
segments are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit / loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the executive Management
in deciding how 10 allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The Company is engaged in providing IT Enabled Services. As such there is no other reportable segment.

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (C 'ODM) for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on the types of goods
or services delivered or provided, the information is future analysed based on the different classes of customers. The directors of the Company have chosen to organise the group
around difference in the products and services. No operating segments have been aggregated in amriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Leases

The Company has accounted for short term lease as per paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116. The Expense relating to short term lease debited in profit & loss account during the period is

Rs. 0.24 Lakh (FY 2023-24 Rs. 0.12 Lakh).
The Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at an amount equal to
lease liability. adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognized in the balance sheet immediately before the date of initial

application,

The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 9.50%.

Following is the information pertaining to leases :

Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
(a) Depreciation Charge for Right-of-Use Asset 16.31 15.28

(b) Interest Expense on Lease Liability 2.15 1.29
(c) Expense relating to short term leases accounted in profit

& lors 0.24 0.12

{d) Total Cash Outflow for Leases for the vear (includes
cxpense relating to short term lease and rent expense

recognised "
(e) Additions to Right-of- Use Asset 47.65 -
(f) Deletions from Right-of-Use Asset (Gross Block) 5 =
(&) Deletions from Right-of-Use Asset (Provision for

Depreciation) -
h) Carrying Amount of Right-of-Use Asset 38.99 7.65
As at Asat
The following is the movement in lease liabilities MARCH 31,2025 MARCH 31,2024
Lease commitments as at the beginning of the year 8.26 23.77
Addition during the period 46.96 -
Finance cost accrued during the period 215 1.29
Payment of lease liabilities - 18.06 - 16.80
Lease commitments as at the end of the year 39.31 8.26
Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabilities (on Undiscounted basis):
Asat Asat
D MARCH 31,2025 | MARCH 31,2024
ue
Not later than 1 year 19.32 8.40
Later than | year and not later than 5 years 24.15 -
Later than 5 years 5 &
Total 43.47 8.40
Discounting effect 4.16 0.14
[Lease Liability on discounted basis 39.31 8.26
Lease Liabilities included in the Statement of Asat As at
Financial Position MARCH 31,2025 | MARCH 31,2024
Non Current 22387 -

Current 16.44 8.26

Total
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26 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE - Ind AS

(a)  List of Related Paries
(i) Holding Company
Anand Rathi Wealth Limited

(ii)  Fellow Subsidiary
A R Digital Wealth Private Limited
Freedom Wealth Solutions Private Limited

(iii) Directors/ Key Managerial Persons

Bishnupada Sahu -Whole Time Director & CEO (upto 31.03.2025)
Rajesh Kumar Bhutara

Abhishek Rathi

(iv) Other Related Parties :

Anand Rathi Share and Stock Brokers Limited
Anand Rathi Financial Services Limited
Anand Rathi Global Finance Limited

Aqua Proof Wall Plast Private Limited

Anand Rathi IT Private Limited

(b)  The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:
Related party relationships have been identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors,

Nature of Transaction/Relationship

(i)  Loan Given

Anand Rathi Share and Stock Brokers Limited Orther Related Parties
Aqua Proof Wall Plast Private Limited Orher Related Parties

(ii)  Loan Given Repaid
Anand Rathi Share and Stock Brokers Limited Other Related Parties
Aqua Proof Wall Plast Private Limited Other Related Parties

(iii) Payment of Reimbursement of Expenses
Anand Rathi Share and Stock Brokers Limited Other Related Parties

(iv) Interest Income
Anand Rathi Share and Stock Brokers Limited Other Related Parties
Agqua Proof Wall Plast Private Limited Other Related Parties

(v)  Suppori Service Taken
Anand Rathi Financial Services Limited Other Related Parties
Anand Rathi IT Private Limited Other Related Parties

(vi) Purchase of Perpetual Debentures
Anand Rathi Wealth Limited Holding Company

(vii) Purchase of Non-Principal Protected Structured Product

A R Digital Wealth Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary
(viii) Sale of Non-Principal Protected Structured Product

Anand Rathi Wealth Limited Holding Company

A R Digital Wealth Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary

(x)  Rent Expenses
Anand Rathi IT Private Limited Other Related Parties

(xi) Remuneration paid to KMP
Short Term Emplo; ee Benefits - Bishnupada Sahu Key Managerial Person

(Rs. In Lakhs)

2024-25 2023-24
—

4,466.00 170.00

3,480.00

4.466.00 170.00

3.480.00

8.62 8.24

66.86 239

- 107.12

0.62 0.57
1.421.50 -

925.00 941.68

* 1.002.08
1,905.90 .

024 0.12

7945 79.74
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27  Earning Per Share
As at As at

MARCH 31,2025 MARCH 31,2024
Net Profit after tax 16242 72.99
Number of equity shares 8,29.252 8,29,252
Face Value Per Share (in Rs) 10 10
Weighted Average number of equity shares 8,29,252 §.29,252
Diluted Weighted Average number of equity shares 8,290,252 8,29.252
Earnings Per Share (in Rs)
~ Basic 19.59 8.80
= Diluted 19.59 8.80

28  Capital Management

For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves atiributable to equity holders of company.
The Company manages its capital to ensure that it continues as a going concern while maximising the retum 1o stakcholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity|
balance.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio. Capital gearing ratio of company is as follows :

Farticalar March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Equity §2.93 8293
Other Equity 1.719.46 1,568.32
Total Equity (A) 1,802.39 1,651.25
Borrowings 12.72 17.00
Net Debt (B) 12.72 17.00
Net Debt to Equity Ratio (B/A) 0.01 0.01

29  Financial Instrument - Fair Values
Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the camying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities. includiny their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
March 31, 2025 Carrying Total
Amount . Fair value through Fair value through
Amarthsedcostl " i ocI

Financial assets
Amortised Cost
(i) Trade receivables 2.60 2.60 - - 2.60
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 211.46 211.46 - - 211.46
(iii) Investments 1.400.00 1.400.00 1.400.00
(iv) Other Financial Assets 85.93 85,93 - - 85.93

1,699.99 1,699.99 - - 1,699.99
Financial liabilities
Amortised Cost
(i) Borrowings 12.72 12.72 - - 1272
(i) Lease Liabilities 39.31 3931 - - 3931
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 24.09 24.09 - - 24.09

7612 76.12 - - 76.12
Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy
As at March 31, 2025

Particulars Level-1 Level-2 Level-3
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Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2024 Carrying Amortised cost  Fair value through Fair value through Total
Amount profit and loss o1
Financial assets
Amortised Cost
(i) Trade receivables 4.29 429 - - 4.29
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 376.61 376.61 - - 376.61
(iii) Other Financial Assets 945,98 945.98 - - 945.98
1,326.88 1,326.88 - - 1,326.88
Financial liabilities
Amortised Cost
(i) Borrowings 17.00 17.00 - - 17.00
(ii) Lease Liabilities 8.26 8.26 - - 8.26
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 18.85 18.85 - - 18.85
44.11 44.11 - - 44.11

Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy

As at March 31, 2024
Level-1 Level-2 Level-3

Particulars

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability,
All financial assets and liabilities are categorised under a Amortised Cost, hence there are no fair value adjustments and therefore hierarchy table not applicable.

The fair value of the financial assels and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument can be exchanged in the current transaction between willing parties, other
than in a forced or Liguidation sale.

Financial instruments carried at amortised cost such as cash deposits, trade and other receivables, trade payables. borrowings and other current financial instruments approximale
at their fair values largely due 1o short term maturities of these instruments.

Financial instruments — Risk management

Risk management framework

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk. credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary risk management focus is 1o
minimize potential adverse effects on revenue. The Company's risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by
the Company. to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes are
reviewed regularly 1o reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the

Company's risk assessment and management policies and processes

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be gble to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as
possible. that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the

Company’s reputation

Exposure to liquidity risk
The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all financial Tiabilities

Particulars Contractual cash flows (INR) (Rs. in Lakhs)
March 31, 2025 Camying amount Total On Demand Less than 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years
Trade Payables - - - - - -
Borrowings 1272 1272 - 1.12 3.50 8.10
Other Financial Liabilities 24.09 24.09 - 24.09 - -
Lease Liabilites 3931 39.31 - 4.57 11.87 2287

Particulars Contractual cash flows (INR lacs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
March 31, 2024 Carrying amount Total On Demand Less than 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years
Trade Payables = - = - - -
Borrowings 17.00 17.00 - 1.04 23 12.73
Other Financial Liabilities 18.85 18.85 - 18.85 - .
Lease Liabilites 8.26 8.26 - 176 4.50 B

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financia) loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from
the Company's receivables from customers, security deposits, capital advances and investment securities.

Customer credit risk is managed by compeny as per its policy, procedures and contro! relating to customer credit risk. Credit quality of a customer credit risk is assessed based on
an extensive credit rating scoreboard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment, Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and all
possible steps taken to timely realise them.

Since the company receives payment in advance there is no expected credit loss as per past trend and hence no ageing in terms of percentage loss shall be available.




FFREEDOM INTERMEDIARY INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U74999MH2013PTC245870
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(Rs, in Lakhs)

As on reporting date credit risk exposure are as on following:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Loans

Trade Receivables 2.60 4.29

Bank Balances in Current Account includes Fixed Deposits 211.25 376.34

Fixed Deposit 50.00 -

Investment In Non-Principal Protected Structured Product - 942,61
1,400.00 E

Investment in Perpetual Debentures

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market Risk comprises three types of]
risk: a.) Interest Rate Risk, b.) Currency Risk and ¢.) Other Price Risk such as equity price risk etc,

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to

changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company's cutstanding floating rate debt included in borrowings

Sensitivity Analysis: (Rs. in Lakhs),
Asat Asal

Particutiry MARCH 31,2025 MARCH 31,2024

Floating Rate Liability 12.72 17.00

A hypothetical 1% shift in underlying benchmark rates will have the below impact:

Impact on Profit and Loss

Increase of 1% (0.04) (0.09)
0.04 0.09

Decrease of 1%

Equity Price Risk

The group's Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the £roup's senior management on a regular
basis.

Al the reponting date. there is no exposure 10 equity securities of other entities.

Currency Risk
The Company's primary business activities are within India and does not have significant exposure in foreign currency.

31 Financial Ratios

Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31,2024 | Ratio variation Reason if Change of More Than 25%

1. Current Ratio (Current Assets / Current Liablities) 0.71 3195 -82.09%| During FY 2024-25 Company sold short term investment and
invested in long term investment and hence working capital
reduced.

2. Debt Equity Ratio (Total Debt / Total Equity) 0.01 0.01 -31.45%] Debt Equity Ration reduced due to repayment of debt

3.Debt Service Coverage Ratio (EBIT / Total Debt Service) 269.76 150.39 79.37%] Increase in Tumover in FY 25 and reduction in debt,

4. Retumn on Equity Ratio (Profit After Tax/Average Equity) 9.41% 4.52% 108.14%| Increase in Turnover in FY 25,

3.Inventory Tumover Ratio (COGS, Average Inveritory) - - 0.00%| NA

6. Trade receivable turnover ratio (Net Sales / Average 181.35 §1.32 122.99%| Turnover increased compared to Jast year along with

Trade Recievables) reduction in Trade receivable.

7. Trade payable tumover ratio (Net Sales / Average Trade - - 0.00%| NA

Payables)

8. Net capital turnover ratio (Net Sales / Net Working 0.22:1) 0.34:1 -254.55% | During FY 2024-25 Company sold short term investment and

Capital) invested in long term investment and hence working capital
reduced.

9. Net profit ratio (PAT. Revenue from operations) 25.98% 12.98% 100.24%| Tumover increased resulting into increase in profitability

10. Retun on Capital Employed (EBIT / Capital Employed) 15.26% 8.71% 75.18%) Turnover increased resulting into increase in profitability

11. Retumn on Investment (Profit on Investment / Average 9.98% 4.94% 50.44%| Increase in investment return has been increased.

Investment)

Explanations to items included in computing the above ratios

1. Current Ratio: Current Assel over Current Liabilities

2. Debt Equity Ratio = Total debt divided by total equity where total debt refers to sum of current and non-current borrowings

3.Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Eamnings available for debt services divided by the Total interest, principal and lease repayment during the period
4. Return on Equity Ratio: Profit After Tax over Equity (includes average of opening and closing equity capilal and other equity).

5. Inventory turnover ratio: Cost of goods sold or sales over average inventory

6.Trade receivables rumover ratio = Revenue from Operations divided by average trade receivables

7.Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by average trade payables

8.Net capital tumover ratio = Revenue from Operations divided by Net working capital whereas net working capital = current assets - current liabilities
9.Net Profit ratio = Profit after tax divided by Revenue from Operations

10.Retumn on Capital Employed= EBIT/ Capital Employed

11.Return on Investment= Net profit after tax’ Average Equity

Note:
a. Considering the narure of business activites, only ratios applicable to the company are provided.

The Non-GAAP measures presented may not be comparable 1o similarly titled measures reported by other companies.
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32 Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises
The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should
mention in their correspondence with ils customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’ (‘the Act’). Accordingly. the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable 10 such enterprises as at March 31, 2025 and March
31. 2024 has been made in the financial stalements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, There is no latest payable,
in accordance with the provision of the act. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date.

March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

Particulars
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year;
The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting vear:

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the suceeeding years. until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small & &
and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006

33 Detail of foreign currency payment made from Credit card is Rs.0.44 lakh (FY 2023-24 Rs.0.29 lakh).

34 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
The Company is not liable to spend any amount as per the provisions of Sec 135 of the companies Act,2013.

35 In the apinion of the Management. the value of all Current Assets, Loans and Advances and other receivables is not less than their realisable value in the ordinary course of
business.

36 The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position.
37 The Company does not have any capital commitments as on the balance sheet date.

38 The Company, as a process, reviews and ensures to make adequale provisions for material foreseeable loss, if any, on all long-term contracts. As on the reporting date there is no
material foreseeable loss on any long-term contract,
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39 Other Notes
Additional regulatory information

a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(entities), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™),with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on hehalf of thecompany {“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, other than those disclosed in the notes to accounts

b} No funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(entities), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the Understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise , that the company shall , whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
funding party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, other than those disclosed in the notes to accounts

¢) The company does not have any transactions during the year with the struck off companies or balance at the end of year with such companies,

d) The company does not have any Benami property and no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property. under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder

€) The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current and previous financial year,

f) The company has not undertaken any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

2) The company has not been declared a *Wilful Defaulter’ by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance
with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

40 The figures of the previous years have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary.
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